UNITED NATIONS
ECONOMIC

AND NI - E/1979/C.1/SR.17
SOCIAL COUNCIL == 200

Distr.
GENERAL(

Duagl distribution

Second regular session, 1979

FIRST (ECONOMIC) COMMITTEE

SUMMARY FECOED OF THE 17th MEETING

held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 23 July 1979, at 3 p.m.

Chairman: . Mr. MATTAR (Jamaica)
Later: Mr., MAVROMMATIS (Cyprus)
CONTENTS

Trensnational corporations (continued)

Regional co-operation (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages. They should
be set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the record. They
should be sent within one week of the date of this document to the O0fficial Reeords
Editing Section, room E.6108, Paleis des Nations, Geneva.

My corrections to the records of the mecetings of this session will be
consolidated in & single corrigendum,-to be issued shortly after the end of the
session.

GE.79-62965



‘e;'E/i979/0.1/SR 17
4;'-page 2

AL

The meeting was called to order at %.20 p.m.

TRANSNATTONAL - GORPCRATTONS (1tem £ 4ni Gouncil's agenda) (E/1979/38 IR
E/1979/104 and A/34/78, Part II) (contlnued) ‘¢~a~,"

1. Mr TANIGUCHI (Japan) said thﬁt his country had participated actively in:
the work of the Commission on Transnational Corporations-ahd -had been glad:to -
give its support to the report adopted at the resumed session of the Comm1ss1on
the prev1ous week.

2" The Centre on Transnational Corporations tended to lay stress on the bad
side of the activities of transnational corporations; he thought that it should
adopt a more balanced approach and take into account the good side, too, such as
the contribution of those activities to the expansion of the world economy. The
information collected by the Centre was often somewhat second-rate, relying
unduly on the mass media. He urged that it should.endeavour to collect more
reliable information in future.

3. His Govermment was keenly interested in the problem of illicit payments.
Any international agreement that was reached on that problem would need to have
the support of the maximum number of countries if it was to be effective and he
hoped that endorsement of the agreement would not be limited to a single group
of companies., The Council should devote as much as possible of the remainder of
the session tc discussion of the problem of illicit payments.

4. Mr. DE ANGELI (World Federation of Trade Unions) said that WFTU had been
concerned with the question of elaborating an international instrument for the
control of transnational corporations ever since that question had first been
brought to the sttention of the international community almost seven years

earlier. He thought that the principles of the Strategy for Social Progress
adopted by WFTU, which were still valid, should be used as a basis for such an
instrument. If a New International Economic Order was to be achieved, the
Commission on Transnational Corporations should concentrate attention on the
aspects of the problem that had remained .unchanged since they had first been
discussed in United Nations forums: namely, the power of treansnational
corporations, with the sole aim of reaping maximum profits, to turn to their own
advantage differences between capitalist countries in regard to labour legislation,
the cost of manpower, the negotiating power of the unions, and levels of taxation.
The two objectives of strengthening developing countries, on the one hahd, and -
protecting the foreign investments of developed countries on the other should not
be regarded as of equal importance. Any international instrument should enable

the various United Nations agencies to play a role in dealing with specific aspects
of the question.

5. WETU agreed with the International Labour Organisation (ILO) that any - . . .
instrument adopted should guarantee each country's national sovereignty over its
natural resources and should ensure that transnational corporations were required
by law to employ local manpower and that factory closures or the transfer of
operations as a result of labour disputes were prohibited. The control by the
transnational corporations of scientific and technological development had led

to a dangerous situation in regard to the working environment; the instrument
should therefore include provisions on working conditions, with specific reference
to measures adopted at .the international level. It should also require’
corporations to make available to trade unions the fullest possible information



E/1979/6.1/SR.17
page 3

not only on working conditions at their factories but also on such questions as =
composition of capital, clanges of ownership or control, investment plans and

the concluding of agreements with Govermments. Such information was not always
easy to obtain direct from the corporations. WETU considered that participation
of representatives of trade union organlzutlons in the work of the Commlss1on
would be most valuable.

6. VFTU welcomed the adoption by the Commission of a resolution concerning the -
elimination of practices of apartheid and racial discrimination followed.by the
corporations. It had been decided at the recent International TLabour Conference
that trade union organizations were entitled to decide on any form of action™
designed to enforce economic sanctions agreed on by the United Nations against
countries practising apartheid, racial discrimination or flagrant violation of
human rights, and he urged the Council to draw the attention of Governments to -
that decision.

Te The adoption of an 1nternatlonal instrument for the control of transnatlonal
corporations was of priority importance for the establishment of a New o
International Economic Order. Recent adverse developments in trade relations’

in the world monetary system, which had aggravated the problems of the developing
world, were closely linked with the actions of transnational corporations, which.
were exerting pressure on Goverrments not to adopt policies of 1ndustr1allzatlon
and economic development more sulted to condltlons in the third world ’

8. He welcomed the work that-had been done on the ‘problem by the Unlted Natlons-*
and its specialized agencies and hoped that before the start of the Third
Development Decade world-wide support would have been achieved: for an 1nternatlonal
instrument for control of transnational corporations.

9. .Mr. FOMINE (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that among- the useful -
studies carried out by the Centre on Transnational Corporations under its .~ -~
programme of research into harmful effects of the corporations! activities in
various spheres. of political, economic and social life were the reports on
transnational corporations in world development, the reports on their impact on
financial and social structures in southecrn Africa and the cxtent of their
collaboration with illegal régimes in that area and the report on corrupt
practices. In part, however, the Centre's research programme tended to run to
diffuseness and to be too much taken up with such secondary matters as the
activities of transnational corporations in advertising, and the provision of .
information and advisory services. Activities of that sort diverted the Centre
from its main tasks and wasted the resources allocated for research,

10. The role of the Centre must consist essentially in carrying out analytical
studies, objectively evalvating the real role and significance of transnational
corporations in contemporary international economic relations, and showing the.
concrete results of their activities, especially their damaging effects on ~ ¢
political and socio~economic relations in the developing countries. Priority

must be given to such important questions as the harm done by the corporations '
to the cause of peace and international security and to the freedom and. ‘ ‘
independence of nations; their role in intensifying the arms race in the
capitalist countries and promoting the armaments trade; their interference in-

the internal affairs of particular countries and violaticn of their sovereignty;



E/1979/C.1/SR.17
page 4 '

relations between the corporations and trade unions and the working class;

their role in envirommental pollution; their exploitetion of the broad masses of
consumers; violations of human rights arising from their activities, and their
activities in the territories of racist régimes in southern Africa., The Centre's
research could play only an auxiliary rols at the national level, since the
formulation of national policy was a matter of the sovereign right of States.

Its task must consist in providing assistance to the relevant intergovernmental
bodies of the United Nations, in particular, the Commission on Transnational
Corporations, in preparing their recommendations. The criteria adopted in
investigating the activities of transnational corporations were not applicable -
to joint State and private enterprises in socialist countries. Studies must be
baged exclusively on official sources of information; all other material,
including consultants! reports, must be carefully analysed and approved at the
national level., In some documents produced by the Centré attempts had been made
to refer, directly or indirectly, to joint State and private economic operations
in the Soviet Union in connexion with the activities of transnational
corporations. That approach was inadmissible; 1t could only give rise to
confusion and create the impression that the Centre was predetermining the
definition of transnational corporations.

11. The proposed new procedure for the immediate provision of services or
information in response to requests made directly to the Cenbre by permanent
delegations to the United Nations or by Governments was outside the Centre's
proper sphere of activity. It could only lead to dispersal of effort and an
unjustified increase 'in expenditure under the regular budget. His delegation
considered that the existing procedure of carrying out studies at the request
of the appropriate intergovermmental bodies, in particular the Commission on
Transnational Corporations, was preferable to a system of individual requests.

12. Work on formulating the code of conduct, which had been proceeding for some
years, must be based on the principle that the code related to the transnational
corporations and not to recipient Govermments of developing countries. Its
provisions must be binding upon the corporations, not upon countries. His
delegation therefore regarded section IV of the draft, proposing certain rights
for transnational corporations and obligations on the part of Govermments of
recipient countries, as inappropriate for inclusion in the code, since it would
amount to a violation of those countries'! sovereignty.

13, Mr. RODRIGUEZ (Venezuela) said that the activities of the Centre on
Transnational Corporations should be placed in the context of the programme of
work adopted by the Commission on Transnational Corporations at its second
session. The objectives of that programme of work were, firstly, to arrive at

a better understanding of the nature of the economic, social, political and legal
repercussions of the activities of the corporations; secondly, to promote the
formulation of international agreements which would enhance the positive
contribution that could be made by the corporations and eliminate their negative
effects; 'and thirdly, to help to strengthen the negotiating abilities of host
countries, notably developing countries, in their dealings with transnational
corporations. He welcomed the setting up by the Centre of a comprehensive
information system, but said that the information to be provided by the system
must be objectively verified if it were to be of practical use., It would be
unacceptable for that verification to be carried out by the transnational
corporations, since they would tend to contribute only information favourable

to themselves.




E/1979/C.1/SR1T
page 5

14. The various research projects carried cut by the Centre had been of great value,
notably those on the activitics of transnational corporations in southern Africa,’

on the pharmaceutical industry and -on the role of publicity in the activitics of
corporations. The Centre's programme for co-operation and technical assistance wa
also of great value to developing countries. He was glad to note that Uct1v1u1es
under that programme were increasing and that developing countries wcre(pgrtlc;patlng
in them to a greater extent, The programme should evolve to take in new areas of
activity under the guidance of the Cormission on Transnational Corvdrations.d

15. He noted from paragraph 45 of the report of the Commlttec for ongramme wnd
Co-ordination on the work of its ninetcenth session (A/34/%8(part IT)) that
arrangements were being worked out which would result in projects of the |

United Nations Devclopment Prograrmc (UNDP) related to transnational .corporations.
being forwarded directly to the Centrc for action. He wondered vhether that implied
that the Centre would in future be able to implement such projects dircetly. He
requested the Executive Director of the Centre to make available to the Committec, -
coplies of the draft sgreement between UNDP and the Centre so that members could ‘
examine it in detail. g : '

16, He was glad to see that substantial progress had been made by the Intergovernmental
Working Group on a Code of Conduct for Transnational Corporations and hoped that in
the forthcoming sessions of the Group work would have advanced cnough to.allow a
draft code to be formulated, Substantial differences still existed between the
developed countries who were menbers of the Group and the developing countries; the
former envisagced the Code ag an instrument to promote the activities of its: "
corporations abroad, whilé the latter naturally saw it as a means of conulolllnp the
activities of foreign enterprises in their territory in order to maximize the p031t1ve
contribution they could make to their economies and to eliminate the negative cffects
The Code must be legally binding if it was to be effective; he hoped that that
problem would be solved in forthcoming meetings of the Group. .

17. The Committee on an»Internaiional Agreement on Illicit Payments had made good
progress, although some differences of opinion persistcd on the renge of application
and the goals of a future agreement.  Somc countries considercd that the agrcement
should simply prov1dg for the extradition of those responsiblc for illicit payments,
while others thought that internal legislation should be framed to pewmiit fullexr
govermmental investigation into crimes of corruption. He hoped that work on both
the Code of Conduct and the Agrecment would soon be concluded so that they could be
adopted simultaneously.

18. Mr. SAHLGREN (Execcutive Director, United Nations Centre on Transnational
Corporutlon"S said that, although he did not have the text of the fomal agreement
between UNDP and the Contre aveilable, o recent letter from the Deputy Administrator
of UNDP stated that the Centre had received authority to act as exccuting agency .of
UNDP projects coming within the competence of the Centre and that arrangements had
been worked out which would result in UNDP projects related to transnational
corporations being forwarded directly to the Centre for action. Such arrangements
were currently being negotiated in New York.



E/1979/C.1/SR.17

page 6 3

19. Mr. RODRIGUEZ (Venezuela) thanked the Exccutive Director for that infomation
T thot the Council should devote some time to informal discussions on
canent between the Centre and UNDP,

and requeste
the exact subjects to be covered by the agr

20. The CHAIRMAY said there would be no objection to the holding of such informa)
discussions. '

21. Mr. KOSSAR (Iran) commended the way in vhich the Centre had succceded in carryip
out its activities dcspite the constraints with which it was facced and hoped that it
would continue to work to mect the needs of the developing countrics. He was glad
to note the progress that had becn made in the Intcrgovernnentol Working Group od a
Code of Conduct but drew attontion to the importance of agrceing on o legel framework
for such a code. The Code should not have any adverse effect on the investnent
climate, but should in fact improve it by creating an atnosphere ol mutual trust,

22. He regretted that the report of the Committee on an Intcrnational Agreement on
Tllicit Payments hod not been ready in time for submisoion to the Cormission at its
fifth secssion, for he thought that the Commission was the appropriatc body to take
stock of the progress achicved both on the Code and on the fAgrecment.  Although
the Council, in resolution 1978/71, ‘had accorded priority to the claboration of the
Code, his dclegation, as a gesture of good faith, had agrocd that o single Conference
should be held to decal with both the Code and the Agrecment late in 1980, ’

23, His delegation had voted in favour of the Commission's draft recsolution on the
activities of transnational corporations in southern Africa. As o notiter of policy
‘and principle, and in accordance with the relevant resolutions of the Council and
the General Assembly, his Government had refrained fron supplying petrelcun and
petroleun products to the racist minority r»égimes in that arca.

24. Mr. vanden HEUVEL (United States of America) said that his Governnont believed
that transnational corporations could give impetus to the development of the
countries in which they opcrated by providing capital inputs, scrving as an cefficient
mechanism for the transfer of technology and training and employing local labour as
skilled workers and monagers. It also rccognized, howcever, that they could have
negative effects on both their host and their home countries,  While the
corporations nceded a favourable investment climate, such as was crcated by
consistent, clear and equitable policics pursucd by the host countrics, the latter
neoded.’che assurance that the corporations would contributc to their notional
cconcnmic priorities and development efforts. The offorte of the Cernission on
Tre.n'snz.a.tions'd Con':porations had been directed to improving and clarifying the
condlt:.Lons in which the corporations operated, so that all could benefit from their
potential.

25. Hls-delogatJ"_on commended the report of the Commission en Tranenctiional
Corpc.nratlons on its fifth session. It shared the hope that the Comniseion would
receive most Qf the Ad%‘aft report before the end of future semsions to ollow time for
it to be considered with duc care. 7



E/l97970.1/éR.17.
page 7

26. The Commission had’ expressed support .for the Council's decision to establish
a new .ad_hoc. 1ntergovernmental working group on accounting standards, in whose
work: hls Government was prepared to partlclpate actively, -

27+ The Commission had cons1dered reports by the Centre on Transnatlonal :
Corporations on its activities, but many of them, varticularly the sectoral
studies, had been circulated too late for adequate consideration. . His delegatlon
hoped that that situation would bé remedied in the future.: B It also hoped that the
Centre would choose its priorities carefully and realistically within its ambitious
programme of future activities, bearing in mind its resource limitations. His
delegation expected accuracy, objectivity and usefulness in the work produced by
the Centre -and would continue to express its dlsapproval if those basic standards
were not met. ’ B ‘ .

28, The Centre had made substantial progress towards the establishment of a
comprehensive information system. He hoped that it would embark on the collection
of general data relating to transnational corporations, bearing in mind the need to
select what was related to a clearly defined and geneérally accepted purpose and to
-ensure that the information collected was accurate and religble. He looked forward
to the establishment by the Commission. of procedures to those ends. The Centre's
technical co-operation programme had been expanded in recognition of its
usefulness. . His delégation fully agreed with the endorsement it had received from
the Commission., .

29. While regretting that more had not been accomplished, his delegation was
pleased with the progress made in the negotiations on a code of conduct and agreed
with the BExecutive Director of the Centre that it had been made possible by
constructive efforts on the part of Govermments on all sides, exceptional leadership
by the Chairman of the Intergovernmental Working Group, and the innovative- procedures
adopted by the Group. The Group. was entering upcon an important new phase of the
negotiations and his Government hoped that they could be speedily completed. It
had accordingly decided to support the recommendatlon that the Council should accede
to the request for three more two-week sessions of the Group.. ...

30. The Secretary-General's report to the Committee for Programme and Co-ordination
on the activities of the Centre (E/C.10/45) pointed out that developing countries
had indicated. a greater need for. information on policies, laws and regulations and
it had suggested that the Centre should shift the emphasis in its activities to meet
that need., His delegation welcomed the expression by the Executive Director of the
Centre of his intention to reorlent its programme accordingly.

31, His delegatlon noted with concern the. comment by CPC that the Conm1s51on s
work programme was developed independently of the portion of the medium~term plan
and programme budget relating to transnational corporatlons and it hoped that a
gingle planning process would be instituted. It noted w1th regret that, in
developing its comprehensive information system, the Centre ‘had not consulted the
Inter-Organization Board for Information,Systems in-order to ensure.that the system

would be compatible and co-ordinated with existing United Nations information
systems. He hoped that:such consultation would taeke place in future.



E/1979/C.1/SR. 17
page 8. -

22, Turning to the report of the Committee on an International Agreement on
Tllicit Payments, he said that his Government had participated in efforts to achieve
such an agreement, believing that it was a goal sought by all countries in their
determination to eliminate such practices as bribery. It was in virtue of that
belief that his Government had regarded the achievement of an. agreement as a priority
objective. In now urging that advantage should be taken of the progress which the
Committee had achieved in preparing the ground for the convening of a diplomatic
conference, which must be the next stage in negotiations, and in-appealing to other
delegations not to hold wup progress by attempting to achieve some narrow political
advantage, -his delegation was not attempting to press others on in a direction they
did not wish to take. If it were the case that some other Governments did not
regard the elimination of illicit payments as an objective to be pursued, his
Government would accept their decision. If, however, the elimination of illicit
payments was still a universally agreed objective, he appealed to all countries to
take the decisive step of agreeing to the convening of the diplomatic conference

in 1980, which, he believed, would be recognized by the peoples of the world as an
achievement by their Governments and as evidence of the fact that the Council was
capable of taking decisive action in such an important matter. His delegation was
well aware of the link that existed between the formulatlon of a code of conduct for
transnational corporations and the attainment of an agresément on illicit payments.
The two issues were, however, to some extent distinct and agreement that was now
within reach on the question of illicit payments could be achieved without in any
way impeding advance towards agreement on the code of conduct.

33, Outlining the course of negotiation on that issue, he said that following upon
General Assembly resolution 3514 (XXX) condemning all corrupt practices by
transnational and other corporations, his delegation had, in 1976, proposed that the
Commission on Transnational Corporations should undertake an effort to develop an

" international agreement on illicit payments. BSince, however, it had been

considered desirable to cover all international business transactions, not just those
of transnational corporations, the matter had becn referred to the Council, which in
resolution 2041 (IXI) had established an Ad Hoc Intergovernmental Working Group and
which had adorted further resolutions on that subject in 1977 and 1978

(B/RES/2212 (IXIII) and E/RES/1978/71).

34, As its history indicated, the effort to draft an agreement on illicit payments
had been made in response to a universally held belief that bribery and other forms
of illicit payments were morally reprehensible and had adverse social and economic
consequences. It had also been recognized that any action to restrain the use of
bribery required co-operative action by States., His delegation hoped that there had
been no lessening of the sense either of condemnation of the urgent need for action.
It was also obvious from the history of those negotiations and decisions that theére
had been a collective understanding that the issue of illicit payments went beyond
the activities of transnational corporations and touched on all forms of international
commercial ‘transactions. Efforts should continue to be focused on the elimination of
such payments whenever and however they appeared. Operative paragraph 7 of

Council resolution 1978/71 provided for the convening of a plenipotentiary conference



E/1979/C.1/SR.17
page 9

to conclude an international agreement on illicit payments in 1980. The Committee
on that subject had now produced a substantially agreed draft agreement. His.
Government was convinced that the next step was to convene a diplomatic ccnference
to finalize the agreement, which it believed had a good prospect of success. His
delegation had accordingly clrculated 1nforma11y to all members of the Council a
draft resolution calling for the’ conVenlng of a diplomatic conference not later than
30 June 1980 and inviting all States to attend. It was prepared to enter into
either formal or informal consultations to that end. While it welcomed the call for
the convening of a conference in 1980 in draft resolution E/1979/C.1/L.6 submitted
by the Ivory Coast on behalf of the Group of 77, the linking of the conference to
efforts to formulate the code of conduct posed serious problems for his Government.

35, He hoped that the practice of operating on the basis of consensus resolutions
would be maintained. The issue at present under consideration provided an
opportunity for the United Nations to show that it was capable of taking constructive
and forceful action in the face of the problem of corruption against which all
countries were bound to struggle.

36. Mr. Mavrommatls (Cvrpus) took the Chair.

REGIONAL CO—OPERATION (ltem 7 of “the Council's agenda) (E/1979/32 and Corr.l,,
47, 48, 49 and Add. 1 50 and Add, 1, 51, 76 and Add. 1; E/1979/C.1/L.7)

37. The CHAIRMAN said that no 1ntroductory comments would be made by the

Executive Secretaries of the regional economic commissions, who had already made
statements in the plenary. He was happy to inform the Committee that, following .
informal consultations with the interested delegations, a consensus had ‘been reached
on questions arising from the reports of the Economic: Commission for Western Asia .
(E/1979/49 and Add.1). As a result, four draft decisions were submitted to the
Committee for approval (E/1979/C 1/L 7). Their financial implications were in the
process of being studied by the Secretariat and would be notified to delegations
before the Council took a final decision on the texts.

38. Mr., PICHUGIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) observed that some of the
decisions and recommendations adopted by the other regional commissions also
appeared to have financial implications.

39, Mr. VORONIN (Secretary of the Committee) replied that the documents emanating
from the regional commissions were being studied by the Budget Division, which would
make the financial implications available to the Council when the issues in question
were taken up.

40, The CHAIRMAN suggested that the four draft decisions relating to the reports
of the Economic Commission for Western Asia on its fifth and sixth sessions
(E/1979/C 1/L 7) should be approved by the Committee immediately, without prejudice
to the right of delegations to comment, either at the present time or at a later
stage, on the matters with which they were concerned. In draft decision II, the
words "so that" should be replaced by the word "thereby", in accordance with the
agrecment reached during the consultations.

41, The draft decisions in document E/1979/C.1/L.7, as amended, were approved by
consensus.,




E/1979/0.1/SR.17
pege 10

42. Mr. PACHACHI (Iraq) thanked the members of the Committee for endorsing the
recommendation in resolution 67 (VI) of the Economic Commission for Western Asia,
which called for the relocation of the headquerters of the Commission from Beirut
to Baghdad with effect from 9 September 1979 end in sccordance with a time-table to
be agreed upon between the Iraqi Government and the United Nations. He was happy
to inform the Committee thet the srrangements being made by his Government to ensure
the smooth transfer of ECWA to Baghdad were well advanced. The headquarters
agrecment between the Covernment of Iraq and the United Wations had rccently becn
signed and the two buildings which 'would serve as temporary premiscs pending
completion of tlie permanent buildings were in the process of being tramsformed to
meet United Nations standerds. The transfer was expected to be completed by

April 1980. His delegation wished to place on record its appreciation of the
co~operation shown by the United Nations officials who had visited Iraq in that
connexion. -

4%, In the view of his delegation, the Committee's decision to postpone consideration
of the recommendation in resolution 68 (VI) of the Commission, which was an expression
of the collective desire of ECWA's members, would hamper the Commission's work and
place its activities under some strein. In viecw of the fact that 21l States members
of ECWA had severed their political and cconomic’ tids with Egypt, it would be
difficult, if not impossible, for the Commission's cconomic co-operation and
integration objectives to be achieved so long as that country, which had signed

a so—called pcace ‘treaty with the Zionist entity, remained e member. He hoped that
delegations would reflect scriously on the matter, which had a close bearing on

the Commission's efficient functioning.

44. VMr. BL FATTAL (Syrian Arab Republic) said that the Government of Iraq was to be
commended. for the generous cfforts it had deploycd over the past two years in
connexion with the relocation of ECWA's hecadquarters. The Government ond pcople of
Iraq were obviously totally committed to the Commission's goals and objectives,
which were fully consistent with those of the Arsb nation in that part of the

Arab world.

45. By adopting dccision IT (E/1979/C.1/L.7), the Council wezs only postponing
consideration of z recommendation which had been adopted unanimously by the
Commission and in respect of which a decision could well have been taken during

the current session. It should be emphasized that what was being requosted was

not Egypt's expulsion from ECWA but suspension of its membership until such time

as the Egyptien régime ceased to co-operate with o régime that was still occupying
territories six times as large as those allotted to it under the so-called partition
plan adopted in 1947.

46. Consideration of the recommendation had no doubt been postponed because some
groups of countries fearcd that a precedent might be created. Thosc countries could
rest assured that such would not be the case, for there was no precedent in history
for the capitulation of Egypi, which had sold the inalicnable right of the
Palestinian people to sclf~determination in return for the sand dunes of Sinai.
There was no precedent for Egypt!s collusion with the United States of America

and with Zionism in respect of an srca where the life and national existence



E/1979/C.1/SR.17-
page 11

of 3 million Palestinians were in jeopardy, and it was impossible that such history
could repeat itself. A couniry could surrender or be defeated but it was not
entitled. to sell. the rights of others; in so doing, it detached itself from the
ideals of the Arab nation and ceased to be Arab. His delegation, which bore no
grudge whatsoever against the, Bgyptian people, considered that Ecypt had both
defeated and been defeated by peace.

47. Egypt's membershlp of BCWA had ﬂlready bo en affected by the very fect that

a debate had taken place in the Council and. that resolution 68 (VI) of the Commission .
had been supported by all the Arab countries, both. members and non-mémbers of. ECWA.
Egypt was de facto no 1onﬂer a member of ECWA, for 1t could no longer fulfil ifts
obligations under Council resolution 1818 (LV) It had concluded contractual
relations with the enemy that were contrary to the very concept of the coxistence
of an Arab nation, religion, culture, body politic, unity and integration. Under
the treaty it had signed, .it had become a dependency of Israel, without whose,
approval it could not conglude any contract or treaty. Mbreover,‘lts sovereignty
in all three zones of Sinai was. still llmlted and would contlnue to.be limited ;
wntil such time as it decided to join "forces with the Arab countries in the battle .
against Zionism. It was ‘difficult to sce how' Egypt could be expected to co—operate
with the Arab countries in promoting economic reconstrwetion when it was selling
the encemy Arab oil from Sinai. It was equally difficult to.see- how the Arab. countrles
could be expected to co-operate with a régime that had opened . the Suez Canal “to .
arms .and tanks being delivered to South Afrlca., .

46, In no,circumstances:could his country accept.that BEgypt should remain a member
of ECWA. His Government had co-operated with the Egyptian delegation in order to
facilitate a consensuys conccrnlnﬂ'Egypt's admigssion to ECVA, but Lgypt had
subsequentlJ done a disservice to the Arab nation.

9. Mr. KHADER (Observer, | Palestine Liberation Organization) welcomed.the Committec's
decision to approve the relocation of the héad quarters of ECWA and to endorse the
Commission's medium-term plan. His delegation hoped that both decisions would
provide ECWA with the stability it required for the performance of the tasks assigned
to it.

50. TUnder its terms of reference, the Commission was required to adopt measures for
facilitating co-ordinated action for economic development and construction, raising
the level of economic activity and malntalnlng and strengthening economic .
relationships smong the countries of the region, on the basis of economic 1ntegratlon.
Indeed, it had been with that end in view that the States members of ECVWA had
recommended Egypt' admission to the Commission, for in normal circumstances that
country could be a,factor of integration and unity, a bridge between the castern

and western parts of the Arab world and a link between the Arab and African nations. .
Unfortunately, the policy followed by the Egyptian régime had isolated Egypt from

the Arab world, created dissension and disequilibrium and undermined the

cohesiveness that was a prerequisite for authentic co~operation smong the countries
of the region. Instead of serving as a bridge, DEgyp?t had now become a barrier or
rift. By normalizing its rclations with Isracl, the cnemy, and signing a so-called
peace treaty, the Egyptian régime had sacrificed the fundamental interests of the
Arab ngtion and relegated the country fto a position comparable to that of the enemy,



E/1979/C.1/SR.17

page 12

which was occupying Arab territory, massacring and oppressing Arabs and depriving
them of their most basic human rights. Because the Bgyptian régime had become the
eneny's ally, it was only natural that it should be excluded from the Arab nation
and, consequently, from ECWA. That did not mean that there was any hostility
towards the Egyptian pecople itsclf, for which his delcgation had the greatest
respect; indeed, BEgypt would certainly resume its rightful place in the Arab nation
as soon as the present régime had been destroyed by the very policy it was pursuing.

51. Common decency should have led the Egyptian régime to suspend its participation
in thé activities of a body whose members had severed all relations with it. It was
difficult to understand why that rdgime wished to maintain its presence in the
Commission, from which it would be excluded de facto since the Council would not

be able to force the Arab countries membors of ECWA to co-operate with Egypt.

52. It was the sincere hope of his delegation that Egypt would soon assume its
responsibilities once again end resume its place in the Arab nation. His delegation
would then be the first to call for Dgypt's reintegration in both ECWA and all the
Arab ond Muslim organizations from which the policy of capitulation and betrayal
pursued by its President had excluded it.

53, Mr. AISSA (Algeria) said that, while his delcgation welcomed the adoption of
decisions I, IIT and IV, it had been reluctant to join the consensus in respect of
decision II, which ren counter o the unanimous desire of the countries of the region
concerned to suspend a member that had lately showed little inclination to respect
the principles of fraternal co-operation. His Govermment continucd to hold the view
that, in the interests of regional co~-operation, the representatives of the Egyptian
Government should refrain from participating in the future activities of ECWA, for
otherwise there was a real danger that those activities would be completely paralysed.
The Council should take note of the fact that all the countrics of the region
congidered Egypt's continued presence in ECWA 1o be undesirable; in those
circumstances, any sttempt to impose another will on those countries would do violence
to established international custom and practice.

54, While his delegation had not opposed the consensus, it had the strongest
reservations and considered That the matter was one which should be examlned by

the Commission itgself in the light of Egypt!s behaviour.

55. Mr. EL-SHAFET (Observer for Egypt) expressed his appreciation of the consensus
which had been reached on the draft decisions in document E/1979/C l/L T As orally
corrected by the Chairmen, draft decision IT stated unambiguously that Egypt's
membership of ECWA remained uwnaffected. In view, however, of the remarks of the
previous. speakers, he felt obliged to state that his delegation had not asked that |
consideration of ECWA resolution 60 (VI) should be postponed.




£/1979/C.1/SR.17
page 13

56. All delegations which had spoken in the debate on agenda item 7 had been unaninous
in emphasizing the importance of co-operation among the States of each region as a
means of assisting the Council to achieve international co-operation in solving
economic and social problems. Although a relative newcomer, ECWA had a good record
in furthering ecoromic co-operation between its member States. Dgypt had joined
ECWA as a result of the unanimous recommendation by the Commission in its
resolution 37(IV), which had been endorsed in Council resolution 2088 (IXIII).

Since that time, BEgypt's participation in the Commission's activities had been,

in the words of its Executive Secretary, both active and effective and the latter
had found Egyptian officials ready to co-operate in his visits to Cairo. A few
Arab countries, however, had taken it upon themselves to halt Egyptian co-operation
as a result of political differences of a temporary nature. At the Commission's
sixth session, they had adopted a recommendation to suspend Egypt's membership,
though it should be noted that the decision had not been unanimous. REgypt itself
had totally rejected it and had put its position on record in document E/ECWA/B4,
the main points of which he would reiterate.

57. Firstly,.Economic and Social Council resolubion 1818(LV) establishing ECWA
had defined its mandate 'as solely and ‘exclusively economic and technical in nature
and had furthermore directed it to take no action in respect of any member country
without the agreement of the Govermment of that country. Secondly, Egypt was a
member of ECWA by virtue of its membership of the United Nations and as a sovereigh .
State enjoyed the rights, as well as undertaking the responsibilities, of such
membership. Its membership of BCWA could not therefore be a favour extended to it
by another group of countries, as was clear from paragraphs 152 and 153 of the
United Nations Repertory of Practice on the membership of regional economic
commissions. Thirdly, suspending membership of such a commission amounted. to a
nmeasure of sanctions affecting the rights and benefits resulting from. : -
United Nations membership and clearly went beyond the competence of ECWA or the
Council. PFourthly, as had been -made clear in the statements of the Arab delegations
to the Council in support of Egypt's admission to ECWA in 1977, the case for Egypt's
membership was based on geographical, historical, economic, cultural, social and
human affinities which could hardly be deemed to be subject to change.

53. The argument adduced in ECWA resolution 68(VI) in support of the recommendation
to suspend Bgypt's membership took no account of the reality of the wolationships

in every field which existed between Egypt and the other members of the Commission.
For example, many thousands of Egyptians were engaged constructively on development
projects in Arab countries, while thousands of students from such countries were
pursuing their education in Egypt: ERgypt itself wished to maintain that co-operation
as long as it was mutually beneficial. Nor was the reference to circumstances which
had led Egypt to redirect its course a valid argument. There were no circumstances
current or future which would redirect the course of Bgyptian co-operation with its
partners in ECWA and its policies in that respect would never be subject to change.
The political differences, however regrettable, were of a temporary nature and
related to methods and not to the final objective. Similar problems arose in every
region of the world and the essential task was' to use every available channel to
achieve agreed solutlons.



E/1979/G.1/SR.17
page 14

5% .-The international community had spent many years of .effort to build up a
world-wide and regional system of international co-operation in all fields and every
country should endeavour to preserve and reinforce that system which derived its
strength from its universality. ECWA and all its members, including Egypt, stood-
to lose by the suspension of one of its members. The Council had taken a correct
decision in refusing to act against its policies and objectives.

60. Mr. STIBRAVY (United States of Amerioa) welcomed the consensus decisions on
the ECWA report, particularly that whereby Egypt's membership of LECWA remained

in full force. In supporting the consensus, his delegation had had no doubt that
the Government of Irag, in its capacity as permanent host to a United Vations
organization, would fully protect the rights of all members of ECWA, including
those with which it might not have diplomatic relations — a principle which the
United States Government had always scrupulously observed in respect of

United Nations headquarters in New York. Since Egypt's full participation in ECWA
activities had been questioned, his delegation wished to emphasize that the Council -
had just reaffirmed that all that country's rights, privileges and obligations as
a member of ECWA remained exactly the same as those of any other member. His
delegation fully expected that ECWA would respect the Council's decision, as

it was bound to do.

61. Mr. EL FATTAL (Syrian Arab Republic), speaking on a point of order, said that
the remarks just made by the representative of a super-Power implied threats to
members of LECWA which were out of place in a democratic forum such as the

Committee. Sabre-rattling by that representative, however, would not frighten anyone
and his country, could not impose its will on the members of ECWA.

62. Mr. STIBRAVY (United States of America) said that it had not been his intention
to threaten. His delegation had the right to explain the meaning of the action which
the. Committee had taken. It was deeply disturbed at the unwarranted attacks which
had been made against the United States and Egypt and at the condemnations of the
Egypt-Israel peace treaty and of the whole process of peace-making in the IMiddle East.
Such attitudes were not only unfounded and damaging to peace, they were also
inappropriate in a forum such as the Council. After four futile and costly wars,

the parties concerned had determined to pursve the path of negotiation, which had
led to a treaty of peace as the first step to a comprehensive settlement of the
Middle East conflict. Moreover, past experience showed that discussions of such
issues in the Council merely jeopardized its real work, to which delegations should
confine themselves,

63, Mr., EL FATTAL (Syrian Arab Republic), speaking in exercise of the right of
reply, said that he wished to remind the Igyptian representative that at the time
when Bgyptian admission to BECWA had been recommended to the Council with the
unanimous consent of the Arab group, that country had not yet committed an act of
treason against the Arab nation in general and the Palestinian people in particular.

64. lir. EL-SHAFZI (Observer for Egypt), speaking on a point of order, called on
the Chairman to protect his delegation from unwarranted attack by putting a stop to
the discussion, in accordance with the rules of procedure. He utterly rejected the
language used by the Syrian representative against his government and people.




3/1979/0 1/SR 17
age 15

65. The CHATIRIAN requested the Syrian repreuentuulve to confine himself to the
matter under discussion. : ‘

66. HMr. BL FATTAL (Syrian Arab Republic) said.that if the word "treason" was
unacceptable, he ould substitute the phrise "inglorious capitulation". At its
B ghdau Conference, the Arab. League had adopted measures against Egypt in order
safeguard Arab solidarity in -defence of ‘a cause; on vhich Arab survival depended.
The declaratlon had clearly stated that the signatories felt only brotherly
co-operation towards the Arab peovle of Lgypt, vhose previous sacrifices on behalf
- of the Palestinian people they appreciated. No barriersz had been raised against
Egyptian vorkers entering Syria, although he himself requived a visa to travel to
Bgypt.. The only DBgyptians attacked in the declaration were those vho' co—operated
with the Zionist enemy. TFurthermore, the declaration-also stated that the neasures
would be withdrawn when the circumstances which had provoked them had ceased to
exist. That was in effect the thiust of ECWA resolution 68 (v1).

67. The Bayptian representative had referred to his country's active participation
in BECWA. At the Commission's fifth session, however, Igypt had not sponsored a
single resolution. The reason for that was that the session had taken place when
negotiations between that country and the Zionist enemy had been at their height.,
Lgypt was not a free country - it was under the tutelage of the so-called peace
treaty. It no longer co-operated with the other Arabd countrics, otherwise the
Egyptian staff of the Arab Lea e vould be allowed to take up thelr posts in Tunisia.

68, lMr. AL-ATTIYAH (Cbserver for Qatar) congratulated the Iragi Government on its
ciicellent arrangements for transferring ECWA headguarters to Baghdad.

69. He associated himself with the views expressed by previous Arab speakers on
the subject of Dgypt's membership of ECUA. When an Arab brother country like
Egypt entered into an agreement vith Israel, Arab States felt they had strong
Justification for severing relations with it. As a logical consequence, it had
been unanimously decided at the Baghdad Conference to recommend the suspension of
Egypt's membership of BCWA thus facilitating the Commission's work by concentrating
it constructively -n its harmonious members. At the same time, he wished to make
it clear than no Arab country was hostile to the Bgyptian people. They were
against those who vere dealing with the chief enemy of the Arab nation.

70, 1lir. DAVENPORT (Ireland), speaklnc on behalf of the Buropean Economic Community,
expressed its appreciation of the Chairman's efforts to achieve a consensus on the
ECWA report. It accepted and supported that consensus ag the Chairman had stated it.

TL. ILr. ELTASHIV (Observer for Israel) said that Israel had again been subjected
to a tirade of slander in an attempt to rewrite history. His delegation once more
rejected the false allegations against his country. The Syrian representative's
attack on the peace treaty gave him an opportunity to explain why Syria had no
interest in a peace settlement in the 1iiddle East -~ it was motivated by simple
imperialism. According to a statement by the President of Syria, on 8 lMarch 1974,
Palegtine was the principal part of southern Syria and it was both Syria's duty
and its right to insist that Palestine should be a liberated part of Syria.




E/1979/C.1/SR.17.
page 16

72. No problem could ever be solved except by negotiations, as called for by

the Charter of the United Hations. Peace had finelly been achieved in the

11iddle Bast after 30 years of conflict: it was an historic turning-point .
inavgurating a nev era which deserved the full support of all those seriously
concerned with the welfare of all nations in that region. It was the hope of =~
Israel that a comprehensive settlement could eventually be achieved so that

all nations in .the lliddle Bast could devote their resources and energies to social
and economic development. C o

7%. Mr. BL PATTAL (Syrian Arab Republic), speaking in exercise of the right of -
reply, said that when the President of Syria had described Palestine as part of
southern Syria, he had added that Syria was northern Palestine.

T4, The CHAIRMAN announced that the Committee had concluded its consideration of
the decisions recommended to the Council.

The meeting rose gd 6 p.m.





